MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON 25 JUNE 2019 AT 2.00 PM AT ASHCOMBE SUITE, COUNTY HALL, KINGSTON UPON THAMES, SURREY KT1 2DN.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.

Members:

*Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)

*Mr Mike Goodman

*Mr Sinead Mooney

*Mr Mike Goodman

*Mrs Mary Lewis

*Mrs Julie Iles

*Mr Matt Furniss

*Mr Mel Few *Ms Denise Turner-Stewart

Deputy Cabinet Members:

*Mrs Natalie Bramhall *Mr Wyatt Ramsdale *Mr Cameron McIntosh *Miss Alison Griffiths

PART ONE IN PUBLIC

94/19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]

There were none.

95/19 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 28 MAY 2019 [Item 2]

The Minutes of 28 May 2019 were approved as a correct record.

96/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND STATEMENT FROM LEADER OF THE COUNCIL [Item 3]

There were none.

Statement from Leader of the Council - Moving Closer To Residents

The Leader made a statement that he had hoped to have had a report at this meeting but that conversations were still taking place and the report was not ready. He went on to reiterate the Council plans which meant not only a physical move of building but also the rollout of agile working which would be a different way of working for many staff. He confirmed that there would be a smaller civic heart with options still being considered in Woking and Guildford. The Leader went on to say that the move from County Hall by the end of 2020 was still on target and that a report would come to Cabinet in September which would confirm details of the move and the financial impact.

97/19 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS [Item 4a]

There were none.

^{* =} Present

98/19 PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b]

There were none.

99/19 PETITIONS [Item 4c]

There were none.

100/19 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE [Item 4d]

There were none.

101/19 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES, TASK GROUPS, LOCAL COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL [Item 5]

There were none.

102/19 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS/ INVESTMENT BOARD TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING [Item 6]

RESOLVED:

The decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families was noted.

Reason for Decision:

To inform the Cabinet of decisions taken by the Leader, Cabinet Members and Investment Board under delegated authority.

103/19 DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEM (DPS) - INDEPENDENT EXPERT ASSESSMENTS [Item 7]

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families introduced this report by setting out the Council's obligations on child protection and the various tests and assessments that may be requested internally or by the courts. She explained the benefits of the proposed dynamic purchasing system and how it linked to other changes in practice which included a reduced reliance on external expert assessments due to increased in-house skills. The Cabinet Member went on to highlight areas of the report and the Equalities Impact Assessment as positive outcomes for children. She informed Members that an email link would be sent out at the end of the week for the latest Ofsted and Children's Commissioner reports.

In response to Member questions the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & families stated that:

 She was confident that 40% reduction in the current number of assessments would be achieved over the coming financial year 2020/21 as an evidence based model of social work practice was being introduced along with a Gateway to Resources team to decide when external assessments would be needed.

- That applicants for Special Guardianship Orders were responsible for arranging legal assessments.
- Whilst there was some leeway in the financial figures the Council would only pay for what it used.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That following consideration of the available options, the results of the procurement process, and commercially sensitive information provided in the Part 2 annex of the report, approval be given for the council to establish a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for the period 1 August 2019 31 July 2021 (with the option for extension up until, but not exceeding 31 July 2024).
- That authority be delegated to the Service Manager (Gateway to Resources) to 'call off' independent expert assessments and assessments for special guardianship orders from this DPS as required.
- 3. That authority be delegated to the Director Commissioning to add new providers onto the DPS for the Council as appropriate.

Reason for Decision:

As outlined in *Child First Commissioning Intentions for Children in Surrey 2017-22*, Surrey County Council is committed to ensuring children in Surrey get 'the right help, care and protection at the right time so they can thrive'. Expert Witnesses and providers of Special Guardianship Order (SGO) Assessments inform the County Council in its care planning decisions.

The demand for statutory and in some cases court ordered assessments has increased at a rate which the Council is unable to meet within current inhouse capacity. To cope with this pressure and ensure our statutory duties are met, the Children's Social Care teams have been spot purchasing external experts to carry out SGO and expert assessments. However the spot purchasing arrangements are not sustainable and not achieving value for money. (This is unsustainable within the financial challenges that the Council is facing). The Council also acknowledges Ofsted's findings (May 2018) which highlighted that there is an over-reliance on independent social workers and other expert witnesses in Surrey, and the quality, value for money and timeliness of assessments are key areas that need improving.

The robust commissioning and contract management arrangements that will be put in place will ensure that expert assessments will be monitored more closely. Regular monitoring will have a strong focus on providers' safeguarding policies and procedures and ensure that the safety of children, young people and vulnerable adults remains a priority at all times.

[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee]

104/19 COMMISSIONING EARLY HELP AND EMOTIONAL WELLBEING PROVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THEIR FAMILIES [Item 8]

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families introduced a report that described commissioned services that would form part of the new early help offer. These would help to ensure that families had access to Early Help at the right time, in the right place and the right cost, that enables them to build resilience through safe, nurturing relationships that enhance emotional health and wellbeing, and enable children and young people to thrive, reducing the need for access to statutory services. The Cabinet Member highlighted the need for a consistent offer across the county and referenced the Children's Commissioner report of September 2018.

In response to Member questions the Cabinet Member explained that when the Family Support Grant ends, the Council would continue to fund. She also explained how the Early Help profile would be raised and the message spread. This included the schools consultation line, family information online and providers making the offer understood and known about.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the use of a Dynamic Purchasing System to commission Early Help and emotional wellbeing provision for children, young people and families from January 2020 be approved.
- That the providers as listed in the Part 2 Annex of this report be awarded a place on the new DPS as they have passed the Invitation to Tender (ITT) evaluation process, whilst recognising that other organisations will be able to apply throughout the duration of the DPS.
- 3. That authority be delegated for the approval of individual contract awards to the Executive Director of Children, Families, Life Long Learning and Culture.

Reason for Decision:

A Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) under the Light Touch Regime has been selected as the most appropriate route to market because:

- It enables robust control of the quality of Early Help provision for children, young people and families;
- It provides flexibility to meet the needs of the whole family regardless
 of the age of the children. This approach also helps to attract a wider
 range of suppliers and allows providers to enter / exit from the list
 without having to re-open frameworks, which can be legally
 challenging and bureaucratic;
- It is responsive. It will enable us to ensure that the service providers
 who can meet the emergent needs of children, young people, and
 families are able to join the list throughout the length of the
 commission.

[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee]

105/19 INVESTMENT BOARD ANNUAL REPORT [Item 9]

The Leader of the Council explained that the Investment Board, Asset Strategy Board and Shareholder Board had all been combined into the Strategic Investment Board and meetings would now be held in public. He introduced the report and explained that there was a challenging market and for the time being, the Council were not actively pursuing investment outside of the county.

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Report of the Investment Board be endorsed.

Reason for Decision:

To inform the Cabinet about the activities of the Investment Board during the Financial Year 2018-19. The Investment Board was responsible for the delivery of the agreed Investment Strategy. The Investment Strategy was created by the council to deliver an ongoing and resilient source of income to provide financial support to the council's front line services. Investments undertaken as a result of the strategy agreed in 2013 are delivering a net income stream to the council.

[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Resources & Performance Select Committee]

106/19 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 10]

RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

107/19 DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEM (DPS) - INDEPENDENT EXPERT ASSESSMENTS [Item 11]

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families introduced this Part 2 report that contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including commercially sensitive information to the bidding companies).

RESOLVED:

See Minute 107/19.

Reason for Decision:

See Minute 107/19.

[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee]

108/19 COMMISSIONING EARLY HELP AND EMOTIONAL WELLBEING PROVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND THEIR FAMILIES [Item 12]

	The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families introduced this Part 2 report that contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including commercially sensitive information to the bidding companies).
	RESOLVED:
	See Minute 108/19.
	Reason for Decision:
	See Minute 108/19.
	[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee]
109/19 INVESTMENT BOARD ANNUAL REPORT [Item 13]	
	The Leader of the Council introduced this Part 2 report that contained information which was exempt from Access to Information requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including commercially sensitive information to the bidding companies).
	RESOLVED:
	See Minute 109/19.
	Reason for Decision:
	See Minute 109/19.
	[The decisions on this item can be called in by the Resources & Performance Select Committee]
110/19 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS [Item 14]	
	Meeting closed at 2.51 pm
	Chairman